
 

 

Licensing Act 2003 Sub-Committee 
 

Tuesday, 24th October, 2023 
6.00 pm 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA 
  
1.   Welcome and Apologies  
  
2.   Declaration of Interests  
 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FORM 2 
  
3.   Application for a new Premises Licence  
 Application for a new Premises Licence 

Appendix 1 
Appendix 2 
Appendix 3 
Appendix 4 - 61WNR.docx 
Appendix 5 
Appendix 6 

3 - 37 

 
 

Date Published: Monday 16th October 2023  
Denise Park, Chief Executive 

 

Public Document Pack



   

X:\FORMS\DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST FORM New 2012.doc 

         
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN  

 
ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA 

 
 
Members attending a Council, Committee, Board or other 
meeting with a personal interest in a matter on the Agenda 
must disclose the existence and nature of the interest and, if 
it is a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or an Other Interest 
under paragraph 16.1 of the Code of Conduct, should leave 
the meeting during discussion and voting on the item. 
 
Members declaring an interest(s) should complete this form 
and hand it to the Democratic Services Officer at the 
commencement of the meeting and declare such an interest 
at the appropriate point on the agenda. 

 
 

MEETING:      Licensing Act Sub Committee 
 
DATE:                         24th AUGUST 2023 

 
AGENDA ITEM NO.:   
 
DESCRIPTION (BRIEF): 
 
NATURE OF INTEREST: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY/OTHER (delete as appropriate) 
 
 
SIGNED :  

 
PRINT NAME:  

 
(Paragraphs 8 to 17 of the Code of Conduct for Members of the Council refer) 

 
 
 

Page 2

Agenda Item 2



DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND LEISURE 
 
ORIGINATING SECTION: PUBLIC PROTECTION SERVICE 
 
REPORT TO: LICENSING ACT 2003 SUB-COMMITTEE Date: 24 October 2023 
 
TITLE : APPLICATION FOR A NEW PREMISES LICENCE- 

61 Whalley New Road, Blackburn, BB1 6JY 
 
 
1. 
 
1.1 

 
PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
For members to consider an application for a new premises licence in respect of 
61 Whalley New Road, Blackburn, BB1 6JY. 
 

2.  
 
3. 
 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
3.2 
 
 
3.3 
 
 
 
 
 
3.4 
 
 
3.5 
 

 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Licensing Act 2003 provides that the functions of the licensing authority 
(including its determinations) are to be taken or carried out by the Licensing 
Committee. The Licensing Committee may delegate these functions to sub-
committees and the Council’s constitution has been amended to incorporate this. 
 
The Statement of Licensing Policy indicates how the licensing authority 
approaches its various functions.  
 
Where under the provisions of the 2003 Act, there are no relevant representations 
on an application for the grant of a premises licence or club premises certificate or 
police objection to an application for a personal licence or to an activity taking 
place under the authority of a temporary event notice, these matters will be dealt 
with by officers. 
 
The Licensing Committee will receive regular reports on decisions made by 
officers so that they maintain an overview of the general situation. 
 
Each application that comes before this committee will be treated on its own 
merits, and this licensing authority will make its decision having regard to: 
●  The merits of the application 
●  The promotion of the four licensing objectives 
●  The policy of the licensing authority 
● The guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of the 

Licensing Act 2003 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1178789/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003_removal_of_minor_variation_relating_to_off_sales.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/1178789/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003_removal_of_minor_variation_relating_to_off_sales.pdf


4. 
 
4.1 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
4.3 
 
 

DETAIL 
 
Mr Farman Ahmed has submitted an application under section 17 of the Licensing 
Act 2003, for a new premises licence by in respect of 61 Whalley New Road, 
Blackburn, BB1 6JY (Appendix 1). 
 
The applicant wishes to permit the provision of Late Night Refreshment each day 
between 23:00 hrs and 03:00 hrs the following day. 
 
The applicant has indicated that he intends for the premises to be open to the 
public until 03:15 hours seven days a week.  

5. 
 
5.1 
 
 
 
5.2 
 
 
 
5.3 
 
 
 
5.4 
 
 
5.5 
 
 
 

CONSULTATION 
 
The application was advertised in accordance with the Licensing Act 2003 
(Premises Licences and Club Premises Certificate) Regulations 2005 and has 
been served on all of the Responsible Authorities.  
 
At the close of the statutory consultation period there were two outstanding 
representations. One from a local Councillor (Appendix 2) and one from 
Environmental Health in their capacity as a Responsible Authority (Appendix 3). 
 
Lancashire Constabulary have confirmed that they reached an agreement with 
the applicant to include an additional condition and therefore do not object to the 
application (Appendix 4). 
 
The Planning Officer has provided information about the current restrictions on 
the use of the premises under Planning legislation (Appendix 5). 
 
The applicant has been given notice under Regulation 7 of the Licensing Act 2003 
(Hearings) Regulations 2005 of this evenings meeting and has also been 
provided with copies of the documents specified in Column 3, Schedule 3 of the 
Regulations. 

6. 
 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

POLICY CONSIDERATIONS 
 
The following sections of the council’s policy are particularly applicable to this 
application. 
 
13. The holders of licences issued under the Act will be required to recognise the 
role which they play in preventing crime, disorder and public nuisance both on 
their licensed premises and outside their premises (on the pavement and in a 
beer garden or smoking shelter, for example). The Licensing Authority will use its 
powers to impose licence conditions to require licence holders to exercise 
reasonable control in these areas, on both new applications and following a 
review.  
 
14. Applicants are reminded that planning permission may also be required before 
any licensable activity can take place and that the planning regime and licensing 
together will be used by the Council to manage the environment, particularly anti-
social behaviour, noise etc. It is the planning process which controls the 
development and overall use of premises, with licensing regulating individual 
licensable activities and the management of licensed premises. Page 4



 
6.2 
 

 
The most relevant sections of the statutory guidance issued by the Secretary of 
State under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 have been reproduced at 
Appendix 6.  
 

7. 
 
7.1 
 
 
 
 
7.2 
 
 
 
7.3 
 

THE LICENSING ACT 2003 
 
Section 18(3) of the Licensing Act 2003, as amended, requires the Licensing 
Authority to hold a hearing to consider an application and any relevant 
representations, within twenty working days following the end of the statutory 
twenty-eight day consultation period, which ended on 10 October 2023. 
 
The licensing authority must have regard to the application and representations 
and take such steps as it considers are appropriate to secure the promotion of the 
licensing objectives. 
 
It may take any of the following steps 

• Grant a licence subject to such conditions that the authority considers 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.  

• Exclude from the scope of the licence, any of the licensable activities to 
which the application relates (this can include revising the permitted hours 
for licensable activities).  

• Reject the whole or part of the application 

8. 
 
8.1 
 
 
8.2 
 
 
8.3 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS ARISING FROM THE REPORT 
 
Members are reminded that they must follow the rules of natural justice and they 
are bound by the code of conduct for elected members in licensing applications. 
 
Members are reminded that they should have read or should hear all the facts 
prior to making a determination 
 
Members are reminded of the consideration they should give to the Human Rights 
Act 1998, in particular Article 1 – the right to peaceful enjoyment of possessions, 
Article 6 – the right to a fair hearing, Article 8 – respect for private and family life 
and Article 10 – the right to freedom of expression. 
 

9. 
 
9.1 
 
9.2 
 
9.3 
 
 
9.4 

BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Appendices 
 
Statement of Licensing Policy 
 
The guidance issued by the Secretary of State under section 182 of the Licensing 
Act 2003 
 
The Licensing Act 2003.  

Page 5



10. 
 
 

WARDS AFFECTED 
 
The premises are situated in the Bastwell & Daisyfield ward.  

11. 
 
 

CONTACT OFFICER 
 
Niky Barrett, Principal Licensing Officer  

12. 
 
 

DATE PREPARED 
 
12 October 2023 

 

Page 6



Page 7

Appendix 1



Page 8



Page 9



Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Appendix 2 
 
 
 
From: Mark Russell  
Sent: Saturday, September 16, 2023 6:41 PM 
To: Licensing Team  
Subject: 61 Whalley New Road 
 
Hi, 
 
I'd like to object to the licensing application for late night refreshments to be sold at this 
premise. 
 
Planning conditions limit its opening hours until 11am. They also prohibit sale of food for 
consumption off the premises. 
 
Both planning conditions were imposed to safeguard residential amenity and nothing has 
changed in that regard - the conditions remain necessary. The application to open until 
3.15am and sell refreshments for consumption off the premises should therefore be rejected. 
 
Regards, 
 
Cllr Mark Russell 
 

Page 29



Appendix 3 
 
 
From: Samuel Stocks  
Sent: Tuesday, September 19, 2023 1:21 PM 
To: Janet White  
Cc: John Wood  
Subject: RE: Application for a premises licence -Rafiki, 61 Whalley New Road, Blackburn 
 
Hi Janet, 
 
We would like to object on the grounds of public nuisance. There are a number of 
residential properties in the vicinity which would be affected by the proposed late opening 
hours of the takeaway.  
 
Kind regards  
 
Samuel Stocks 
Environmental Protection Officer  
Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council 
 

Page 30



Appendix 4 
 
From: Barton, Sarah  
Sent: Monday, September 25, 2023 11:18 AM 
To: Licensing Team  
Subject: FW: 61 WHALLEY NEW ROAD, BLACKBURN - CONDITION 
Importance: High 
 
Good morning 
 
Please see below the condition that the applicant has agreed to – with that added, we have no 
objections to the application 
 
Thanks, Sarah 
 
 
Sarah Barton 
East Division Licensing 
Burnley, Rossendale, Pendle & Ribble Valley 
Lancashire Constabulary 
 
 

 
From: Ian Rushton  
Sent: 22 September 2023 14:15 
To: Duguid, Camille  
Subject: Re: 61 WHALLEY NEW ROAD, BLACKBURN - CONDITION  
 
Hi Camille 
 
Thanks for your emails and call. 
 
Yes, my client is more than happy to agree that condition. 
 
Regards, Ian 
 
Ian Rushton 
JL Licensing 
07909 511953 

 
 
 
From: Duguid, Camille  
Sent: 18 September 2023 15:41 
To: 'ijrushy@hotmail.com'  
Subject: 61 WHALLEY NEW ROAD, BLACKBURN - CONDITION 
 
Good afternoon,  
 
We are in receipt of the application for a new premises at 61 Whalley New Road, Blackburn. 
 

Page 31



We would like to see an additional condition to support the protection of children: 
 
All children aged 16 years old or under will not be allowed inside the premises after 2300hrs daily 
unless accompanied by a parent or guardian. 
 
If you are happy to include this condition, please could you sign the attached and return. 
 
Many thanks 
Camille 
 
 
Camille Duguid  
East Division Licensing | Lancashire Constabulary 
 

Page 32



Appendix 5 
 
From: Nick Blackledge <nick.blackledge@blackburn.gov.uk>  
Sent: Tuesday, September 12, 2023 5:15 PM 
To: Janet White <janet.white@blackburn.gov.uk>; _Members All <MembersAll@blackburn.gov.uk>; 
Conlon Paul <paul.conlon@blackburn.gov.uk>; _Regeneration PPS Licensing Enforcement 
<_RegenerationPPSLicensingEnforcement@blackburn.gov.uk>; Colin Hughes 
<Colin.Hughes@blackburn.gov.uk>; CPUnit <CPUnit@blackburn.gov.uk>; Denise Andrews 
<Denise.Andrews@blackburn.gov.uk>; Fire; Fire <FireSafetyEastern@lancsfirerescue.org.uk>; Frank 
Mallon <frank.mallon@blackburn.gov.uk>; Gary Johnston (PP&EH) 
<Gary.Johnston@blackburn.gov.uk>; John Wood <John.Wood@blackburn.gov.uk>; Lee Girvan 
<Lee.Girvan@BLACKBURN.GOV.UK>; Niky Barrett <Niky.Barrett@blackburn.gov.uk>; Planning 
<Planning@blackburn.gov.uk>; Police <Eastpolicelicensing@lancashire.pnn.police.uk>; Tim Birch 
<tim.birch@blackburn.gov.uk> 
Subject: RE: Application for a premises licence -Rafiki, 61 Whalley New Road, Blackburn 
 
Hi  
 
This premises has limitations imposed by planning conditions, as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Due to conflict with conditions 2 and 3, the LPA would object to the proposed premises licence. 
 
Kind regards 
Nick 
 
 
Regards 
Nick Blackledge MA MRTPI 
Principal Planner (Development Management) 
Growth & Development Department  
Planning Service 
Blackburn with Darwen Borough Council 
 

Page 33



APPENDIX 6 

Extract from Statutory Guidance issued in August 2023 under s.182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

Licence conditions – general principles  

1.16  Conditions on a premises licence or club premises certificate are important in setting the 
parameters within which premises can lawfully operate. The use of wording such as 
“must”, “shall” and “will” is encouraged. Licence conditions:  
• must be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives;  
• must be precise and enforceable;  
• must be unambiguous and clear in what they intend to achieve;  
• should not duplicate other statutory requirements or other duties or responsibilities 

placed on the employer by other legislation;  
• must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the premises 

and events concerned;  
• should not be standardised and may be unlawful when it cannot be demonstrated that 

they are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives in an individual 
case;  

• should not replicate offences set out in the 2003 Act or other legislation;  
• should be proportionate, justifiable and be capable of being met;  
• cannot seek to manage the behaviour of customers once they are beyond the direct 

management of the licence holder and their staff, but may impact on the behaviour of 
customers in the immediate vicinity of the premises or as they enter or leave; and  

• should be written in a prescriptive format.  

Each application on its own merits  

1.17  Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the 
licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy; for example, if the application falls 
within the scope of a cumulative impact policy. Conditions attached to licences and 
certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of the 
premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of 
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no need 
for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed may be 
unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of the licensing 
objectives in an individual case.  

Public nuisance  

2.20  The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through 
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to 
prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club premises 
certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this licensing 
objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect of the 
licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working (including 
those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be 
disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light 
pollution, noxious smells and litter.  

2.21  Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is however 
not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law meaning. It may 
include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and working amenity and 
environment of other persons living and working in the area of the licensed premises. 

Page 34



Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of artificial light, dust, 
odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health.  

2.22  Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control the 
levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple measure 
such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular time, or 
persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time. More 
sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker mounts 
to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate. However, conditions in 
relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in circumstances where the 
entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions appropriate 
to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type, nature and 
characteristics of the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing authorities 
should avoid inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter events that are 
valuable to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are expensive 
to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable burden for smaller venues.  

2.23  As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in certain 
circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those living in the 
area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of licensing 
authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when their powers 
are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other legislation may 
not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and additional 
conditions may be appropriate.  

2.24  Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions should 
normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive period for 
people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the early morning 
when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or are sleeping. 
This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live music between 11 
pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise emanating from the 
premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance anticipated as customers 
enter and leave.  

2.25  Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting outside 
premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may itself give 
rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities and 
responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.  

2.26  Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the personal 
responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in anti-social 
behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly reasonable for 
a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant representations, that 
requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from the building 
encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they wish to smoke, to 
do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to respect the rights of 
people living nearby to a peaceful night. 

 

Hearings  

9.37  As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the steps 
considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives that 
have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed areas. A 
responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written representation. 
They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the applicant prior to the 

Page 35



hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation and should be allowed 
sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and practicable limits.  

9.38  In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the 
overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate 
weight to: 

• the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;  
• the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties;  
• this Guidance;  
• its own statement of licensing policy.  

9.39  The licensing authority should give its decision within five working days of the conclusion 
of the hearing (or immediately in certain specified cases) and provide reasons to support 
it. This will be important if there is an appeal by any of the parties. Notification of a 
decision must be accompanied by information on the right of the party to appeal. After 
considering all the relevant issues, the licensing authority may grant the application 
subject to the relevant mandatory conditions and any conditions that are consistent with 
the operating schedule. Any additional conditions imposed must be appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives; there is no power for the licensing authority to attach 
a condition that is merely aspirational. For example, conditions may not be attached which 
relate solely to the health of customers rather than their direct physical safety. Any 
conditions added to the licence must be those imposed at the hearing or those agreed 
when a hearing has not been necessary.  

9.40  Alternatively, the licensing authority may refuse the application on the grounds that this is 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives. It may also refuse to specify a 
designated premises supervisor and/or only allow certain requested licensable activities. 
In the interests of transparency, the licensing authority should publish hearings 
procedures in full on its website to ensure that those involved have the most current 
information. 

Determining actions that are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives  

9.42  Licensing authorities are best placed to determine what actions are appropriate for the 
promotion of the licensing objectives in their areas. All licensing determinations should be 
considered on a case-by-case basis. They should take into account any representations 
or objections that have been received from responsible authorities or other persons, and 
representations made by the applicant or premises user as the case may be.  

9.43  The authority’s determination should be evidence-based, justified as being appropriate for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives and proportionate to what it is intended to 
achieve.  

9.44  Determination of whether an action or step is appropriate for the promotion of the 
licensing objectives requires an assessment of what action or step would be suitable to 
achieve that end. While this does not therefore require a licensing authority to decide that 
no lesser step will achieve the aim, the authority should aim to consider the potential 
burden that any condition would impose on the premises licence holder (such as the 
financial burden due to restrictions on licensable activities) as well as the potential benefit 
in terms of the promotion of the licensing objectives. However, it is imperative that the 
authority ensures that the factors which form the basis of its determination are limited to 
consideration of the promotion of the objectives and nothing outside those parameters. As 
with the consideration of licence variations, the licensing authority should consider wider 
issues such as other conditions already in place to mitigate potential negative impact on 
the promotion of the licensing objectives and the track record of the business. Further 
advice on determining what is appropriate when imposing conditions on a licence or 

Page 36



certificate is provided in Chapter 10. The licensing authority is expected to come to its 
determination based on an assessment of the evidence on both the risks and benefits 
either for or against making the determination.  

Considering cases where licensing and planning applications are made simultaneously  

9.45  Where businesses have indicated, when applying for a licence under the 2003 Act, that 
they have also applied for planning permission or that they intend to do so, licensing 
committees and officers should consider discussion with their planning counterparts prior 
to determination with the aim of agreeing mutually acceptable operating hours and 
scheme designs. 

 

 

Page 37


	Agenda
	2 Declaration of Interests
	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN

	3 Application for a new Premises Licence
	DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENT AND LEISURE
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4 - 61WNR.docx
	From: Ian Rushton
	Sent: 22 September 2023 14:15 To: Duguid, Camille  Subject: Re: 61 WHALLEY NEW ROAD, BLACKBURN - CONDITION
	From: Duguid, Camille  Sent: 18 September 2023 15:41 To: 'ijrushy@hotmail.com'  Subject: 61 WHALLEY NEW ROAD, BLACKBURN - CONDITION

	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6




